# **Faculty Senate Chair Report**

July 7, 2020

### **Fall 2020 Academic Planning**

Provost Boehm released the Pivot to Fall plans for Fall 2020: https://louisville.edu/coronavirus/assets/pivot-to-fall-2020

### **Board of Trustees**

The Board of Trustees met Thursday, June 25, 2020 and approved the FY21 operating budget, which is attached to this report. Regarding the FY 2020 projected financial impacts caused by COVID-19, the overall mitigation plan was successful based on the year-end budget outlook. Final details will note be available until after the month of June closes in early/mid-July.

The BOT also approved the extension of the phased retirement option (please see <a href="http://louisville.edu/provost/faculty-personnel/Phased%20Retirement%20Policy.pdf">http://louisville.edu/provost/faculty-personnel/Phased%20Retirement%20Policy.pdf</a>), the renaming of the Overseers Honors House to "Honors House", and faculty promotion and tenure recommendations.

Tuition Rates for 20-21 are as follows:

Tuition rate changes and per semester dollar changes for full-time students:

o Undergraduate (resident and non-resident): +2.0% / \$117 resident; \$277 non-resident

o Graduate (resident): +2.0% / \$130

o Graduate (non-resident): +0.9% / \$130

o Law (resident): +3.0% / \$336 o Law (non-resident): +1.6% / \$336

Tuition rate changes and per year dollar changes for full-time students:

o Dentistry (resident and non-resident): +3.0% / \$1,034 resident; \$2,158 non-resident

o Medicine (resident and non-resident): +2.5% / \$1,018 resident; \$1,548 non-resident

Chief Financial Officer Dan Durbin provided an update on UofL's current budget situation and its strategy for FY21 in a video, outlining the plans to restore of some retirement benefits, as well as no increases in employees' health insurance premiums or parking fees. <u>See the video</u> under Financial Challenge Mitigation for more information.

Please note this clarification: the university's retirement contribution, which had been put on hold for May, June and July 2020, will be partially restored at 2.5 percent for all employees plus a 2.5 percent match of employee contributions **beginning Aug. 1, 2020**.

### **Parking**

Beginning on July 6 all permit holders should begin parking in their designated permit areas and designated spaces, as assigned.

### **Provost Search**

In March of 2020 the Provost Search timeline was rescheduled to be completed Fall 2020 due to COVID-19. The search firm recommended that the ad be re-posted in order to maintain a robust pool of candidates, since some candidates removed themselves from the pool due to a variety of circumstances. The plan remains to bring candidates to campus in early September.

### **Phased Return to Campus**

Mark Watkins sent a message to the campus community Friday June 26 regarding UofL Health and Safety Protocols for Returning to Campus. These protocols are attached to this report.

### **IT Governance Framework**

UofL information technology governance framework will ensure that the University of Louisville's technology assets are aligned to the University's mission and strategic plan. The following committees will undertake strategic work and decisions in support of teaching & learning, research, data administration, policy, security and business systems & services goals.

The primary committee for decision making is the Information Technology Executive Committee (ITEC).

Supporting Committees are as follows:

- Academic Technology Committee (ATC)
- 2. Research Computing Advisory Committee (RCAC)
- 3. Enterprise Systems & Infrastructure (ESIC)
- 4. Data Administration, Policy and Security Committee (DAPS)

The committees will recommend and support the strategic initiatives and decisions of the IT Executive Committee and the Vice Provost/CIO.

# LOUISVILLE

# FY 2021 Proposed Operating Budget



# **Table of Contents**

# FY 2021 Operating Budget



Table of Contents	
Proposed Operating Budget Overview	1
Table 1A: FY 2021 Operating Budget by Corporation and Revenues and Expenses	
Mitigation Strategies	1
Table 1B: FY 2020 Operating Budget by Corporation and Revenues and Expenses	2
Table 1C: FY 2020 to FY 2021 Operating Budget Change by Corporation	3
Table 2: FY 2021 Operating Expenditure Budget by Unit and Funding Source	4
General Fund Change Details	5
Table 3: Tuition and Fee Budget Amounts	6
Office of the President	12
Table 4: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	12
Athletics	13
Table 5: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	13
Vice President for Finance	14
Table 6: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	14
Human Resources	15
Table 7: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	15
Chief Operating Officer	16
Table 8: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	16
Audit Services	17
Table 9: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	17
Office of the Provost	18
Table 10: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	18
Executive Vice President for Research	19
Table 11: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	19
Vice President for Student Affairs	20
Table 12: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	20
Vice President for University Advancement	21
Table 13: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	21
Vice President for Community Engagement	22
Table 14: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	22

# **Table of Contents**

# FY 2021 Operating Budget



University Libraries	23
Table 15: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	23
College of Art and Sciences	24
Table 16: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	24
JB Speed School of Engineering	25
Table 17: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	25
College of Business	26
Table 18: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	26
College of Education and Human Development	27
Table 19: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	27
Kent School of Social Work	28
Table 20: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	28
Brandeis School of Law	29
Table 21: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	29
School of Music	30
Table 22: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	30
Executive Vice President for Health Affairs	31
Table 23: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	31
School of Dentistry	32
Table 24: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	32
School of Medicine	33
Table 25: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	33
School of Nursing	34
Table 26: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	34
School of Public Health and Information Sciences	35
Table 27: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	35
University-wide (Utilities, Debt Service, Insurances)	36
Table 28: FY 2021 General Funds Summary	36



### PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET OVERVIEW

Table 1A: FY 2021 Operating Budget by Corporation and Revenues and Expenses

	General Funds	UL Research Foundation	Athletics	Foundation	Other Dept. Funds	All Funds
Revenues		roundation			rulius	
Tuition and Fees	325,927,672					325,927,672
State Funds	127,056,800					127,056,800
Transfers to General Fund	23,967,589					23,967,589
Auxiliaries	13,132,518					13,132,518
Clinical (including Hospital)	9,308,327	322,856,844				332,165,171
Sponsored Agreements		131,250,000				131,250,000
Pass Through Financial Aid		44,000,000				44,000,000
Other Revenue	14,206,997	3,000,000	107,377,000	56,383,000	40,914,903	221,881,900
Total Fiscal Year Revenues	513,599,903	501,106,844	107,377,000	56,383,000	40,914,903	1,219,381,650
Funds Received in Prior Periods	3,000,000	0	0	0	2,538,547	5,538,547
Total Funding Available	516,599,903	501,106,844	107,377,000	56,383,000	43,453,450	1,224,920,197
Expenditures						
Salary	256,583,186	231,568,972	35,653,723	18,534,184	13,374,262	555,714,327
Fringe Benefits	75,708,778	54,121,860	6,825,525	5,224,865	3,734,417	145,615,445
Operating	88,933,726	154,821,844	36,747,031	24,531,672	25,732,971	330,767,244
Scholarships	65,771,365	45,425,605	15,070,302	8,092,279	611,800	134,971,351
Capital Asset plus Debt Service	26,700,413	15,168,563	12,230,419	0	0	54,099,395
Utilities	23,164,110	0	850,000	0	0	24,014,110
Total Expenditures	536,861,578	501,106,844	107,377,000	56,383,000	43,453,450	1,245,181,872
Budget Surplus/(Deficit)	(20,261,675)	0	0	0	0	(20,261,675)

<sup>\*</sup>Budgeted General Fund expenditures includes \$17.5 million in contingency funds.

### Mitigation Strategies (General Fund)

Amid the uncertainties created by COVID-19 the university has been intentional in its efforts to maintain a balanced budget in FY 2020 as well as craft a flexible, but balanced, budget for FY 2021. In FY 2020 the university quickly deployed salary reductions, retirement contribution holdbacks, and other actions to offset additional costs and anticipated loss of tuition, investment, and other revenues through the end of FY 2020. Those actions were successful. The university will end the fiscal year with a balanced budget. Heading into FY 2021 many of the same uncertainties remain. Rather than pre-emptively reducing unit budgets in a non-strategic, across-the-board manner, the FY 2021 budget increases unit contingency pools from 1% to 5%. These reserves ensure the university has the resources available to maintain a balanced FY 2021 budget as well as the flexibility to address limited additional revenue or expenditure shocks if they occur.

"Funds received in prior periods" are one-time dollars that are scheduled to be received in FY 2020 but spent in FY 2021.



The FY 2021 General Fund budget as presented shows an anticipated \$20,261,675 imbalance before applying the following mitigation actions.

Mitigation Action	Expense Impact	Status
Reduce employer retirement contribution rate (from 7.5% to 2.5% for FY 2021)	-\$7,175,000	Already initiated
Use of unit contingency funds (~75% of available)	-\$13,086,675	No action yet
Total Mitigation Actions	-\$20,261,675	

After accounting for these mitigation actions, the FY 2021 general fund is balanced.

Ava	ilable Mitigation Options	In Budget?
1	Reduce employer retirement contribution to 2.5% + match	
2	Partial use of unit contingencies	
3	Employee pay reductions	
4	Eliminate employer retirement contributions	
5	Spending curtailments	
6	Further use of unit contingencies	
7	General furloughs	

Table 1B: FY 2020 Operating Budget by Corporation and Revenues and Expenses

	General Funds	UL Research Foundation	A th letics	Foun dation	Other Dept. Funds	All Funds
Revenues		Todildation			Tulius	
Tuition and Fees	326,958,382					326,958,382
State Funds	126,633,700					126,633,700
Transfers to General Fund	23,655,528					23,655,528
Auxiliaries	12,528,885					12,528,885
Clinical (including Hospital)	9,237,209	334,770,468				344,007,677
Sponsored Agreements		130,500,000				130,500,000
PassThrough Financial Aid		43,400,000				43,400,000
Other Revenue	16,311,627		117,714,000	53,246,000	36,435,770	223,707,397
Total Current Year Revenues	515,325,331	508,670,468	117,714,000	53,246,000	36,435,770	1,231,391,569
Expenditures						
Salary	259,819,064	243,539,010	39,576,000	21,185,626	11,221,592	575,341,293
Fringe Benefits	71,766,133	56,912,825	7,346,000	5,620,288	3,083,638	144,728,884
Operating	73,633,205	148,543,005	41,121,000	17,389,465	20,939,078	301,625,753
Scholarships	64,200,503	44,809,539	16,168,000	9,033,674	1,191,462	135,403,178
Capital Assets plus Debt	25,706,780	14,866,089	12,703,000	0	0	53,275,869
Utilities	20,199,646	0	800,000	16,946	0	21,016,592
Total Expenditures	515,325,331	508,670,468	117,714,000	53,246,000	36,435,770	1,231,391,569
Surplus/(Deficit)	0	0	0	0	0	0



Table 1C: FY 2020 to FY 2021 Operating Budget Change by Corporation

	General Funds	UL Research Foundation	A th letics	Foun dation	Other Dept. Funds	All Funds
Revenues						
Tuition and Fees	(1,030,710)	0	0	0	0	(1,030,710)
State Funds	423,100	0	0	0	0	423,100
Transfers to General Fund	312,061	0	0	0	0	312,061
Auxiliaries	603,633	0	0	0	0	603,633
Clinical (including Hospital)	71,118	(11,913,624)	0	0	0	(11,842,506)
Sponsored Agreements	0	750,000	0	0	0	750,000
PassThrough Financial Aid	0	600,000	0	0	0	600,000
Other Revenue	(2,104,630)	3,000,000	(10,337,000)	3,137,000	4,479,133	(1,825,497)
Total Current Year Revenues	(1,725,428)	(7,563,624)	(10,337,000)	3,137,000	4,479,133	(12,009,919)
Funds Received in Prior Periods	3,000,000	0	0	0	2,538,547	5,538,547
Total Funding Available	1,274,572	(7,563,624)	(10,337,000)	3,137,000	7,017,680	(6,471,372)
Expenditures						
Salary	(3,235,878)	(11,970,039)	(3,922,277)	(2,651,442)	2,152,670	(19,626,966)
Fringe Benefits	3,942,645	(2,790,965)	(520,475)	(395,423)	650,779	886,561
Operating	15,300,521	6,278,839	(4,373,969)	7,142,207	4,793,893	29,141,491
Scholarships	1,570,862	616,066	(1,097,698)	(941,395)	(579,662)	(431,827)
Capital Assets plus Debt	993,633	302,474	(472,581)	0	0	823,526
Utilities	2,964,464	0	50,000	(16,946)	0	2,997,518
Total Expenditures	21,536,247	(7.563.624)	(10,337,000)	3,137,000	7,017,680	13,790,303



Table 2: FY 2021 Operating Expenditure Budget by Unit and Funding Source

	General Funds	UL Research Foundation	Athletics	Foundation	Other Dept. Funds	All Funds
Total Current and Prior Period Revenues	516,599,903	501,106,844	107,377,000	56,383,000	43,453,450	1,224,920,197
Expenditures						
Office of the President	9,468,023	1,593,091		3,675,994	2,781,454	17,518,562
Intercollegiate Athletics	2,143,519	0	107,377,000	33,384	0	109,553,903
Vice President for Finance	5,379,011	0		0	190,000	5,569,011
Human Resources	2,678,647	74,421		0	0	2,753,068
COO/Physical Plant	41,922,115	1,823,876		98,509	2,071,914	45,916,414
Audit Services	1,812,068	8,355		1,660	45,000	1,867,083
Office of the Provost	107,071,906	44,190,450		3,362,296	3,920,964	158,545,616
Executive Vice President for Research	11,237,309	1,175,025		0	3,158,203	15,570,537
Vice President for Student Affairs	16,868,052	81,995		448,607	1,446,487	18,845,141
Vice President for University Advancement	1,011,285	1,614,695		7,627,329	664,975	10,918,284
Vice President for Community Engagement	814,557	266,923		111,120	0	1,192,600
University Libraries	17,125,703	64,104		1,434,642	987,458	19,611,907
College of Arts & Sciences	67,173,824	1,874,749		2,737,698	2,562,979	74,349,250
J.B. Speed School of Engineering	28,991,609	3,580,858		4,848,025	2,637,869	40,058,361
College of Business	28,561,466	154,550		3,287,991	2,150,169	34,154,176
College of Education and Human Development	20,786,086	1,181,730		814,964	2,856,223	25,639,003
Kent School of Social Work	8,051,910	2,256,740		260,636	220,524	10,789,810
Brandeis School of Law	11,646,639	31,618		791,306	190,194	12,659,757
School of Music	8,097,365	25,141		1,116,722	191,952	9,431,180
Executive Vice President for Health Affairs	12,815,742	69,555,778		208,999	199,368	82,779,887
School of Dentistry	25,876,613	20,926,117		1,255,964	182,459	48,241,153
School of Medicine	41,660,498	334,811,505		23,437,595	16,843,882	416,753,480
School of Nursing	6,899,212	5,444,104		553,269	45,000	12,941,585
School of Public Health and Information Sciences	4,384,869	7,371,019		276,290	106,376	12,138,554
Debt Service, Utilities, Reserves	54,383,550	3,000,000	0	0	0	57,383,550
Total Expenditures	536,861,578	501,106,844	107,377,000	56,383,000	43,453,450	1,245,181,872
Surplus/(Deficit)	(20,261,675)	0	0	0	0	(20,261,675)

<sup>\*</sup>Budgeted General Fund expenditures includes \$17.5 million in contingency funds.

The FY 2021 General Fund budget as presented shows an anticipated \$20,261,675 imbalance before applying the following mitigation actions.

Mitigation Action	Expense Impact	Status
Reduce employer retirement contribution rate (from 7.5% to 2.5% for FY 2021)	-\$7,175,000	Already initiated
Use of unit contingency funds (~75% of available)	-\$13,086,675	No action yet
<b>Total Mitigation Actions</b>	-\$20,261,675	

After accounting for these mitigation actions, the FY 2021 general fund is balanced.



### **GENERAL FUND CHANGE DETAILS**

### Revenues

Inclusive of all changes, general fund revenues are expected to decrease by \$1.7 million in FY 2021 compared with FY 2020. There are four main drivers that explain the change.

- 1. Decrease in gross tuition and fees
- 2. Decrease in investment income
- 3. Increase in state performance funding
- 4. Increase in housing

### **Tuition and Fees**

Due to changes precipitated by COVID-19, the FY 2021 budget includes the following changes to its tuition pricing structure. These changes will eliminate pricing differentials between in-person and online credit hour rates which has been a consistent concern of students. Many students will pay less total tuition as a result. Students will also have a financial incentive to enroll in more credit hours per semester which may help them graduate sooner.

The following tuition structure changes are included in the FY 2021 budget.

Tuition Change	Revenue Gain / (Loss)
Eliminate tuition charges for online courses above full-time load	(\$6,332,000)
Equalize online and in-person tuition rates	(\$2,237,000)
Non-resident tuition pricing (same online and in-person rates)	\$1,631,000
Total	(\$6,938,000)

In addition, the following tuition rate changes and enrollment assumptions are included in the FY 2021 budget.

- Undergraduate enrollment: -1.9% headcount (303)
- Graduate enrollment: +100 headcount
- Professional enrollment: -20 headcount (Law School)



• Tuition rate changes and per semester dollar changes for full-time students:

Undergraduate (resident and non-resident): +2.0% / \$117 resident; \$277 non-resident

Graduate (resident): +2.0% / \$130

Graduate (non-resident): +0.9% / \$130

Law (resident): +3.0% / \$336

Law (non-resident): +1.6% / \$336

• Tuition rate changes and per year dollar changes for full-time students:

o Dentistry (resident and non-resident): +3.0% / \$1,034 resident; \$2,158 non-resident

o Medicine (resident and non-resident): +2.5% / \$1,018 resident; \$1,548 non-resident

Table 3 shows the cumulative impact of the tuition price restructuring, enrollment, and rate changes for each degree type. "Continuing and Other" tuition revenues include most special tuition rate programs in the College of Business (e.g., MBAs) as well as training and other continuing education revenues. "Fees" include mandatory student fees which total \$201 per semester (full-time) plus course and lab fees that students incur if enrolled in certain courses. No changes to mandatory student fees are included in the FY 2021 budget.

FY 2020 FY 2021 Revenue Change % Change 184,518,492 179,180,290 -2.9% Undergraduate (5,338,202)Graduate 41,136,024 42,366,868 1,230,844 3.0% Professional 64,520,000 66,547,002 2,027,002 3.1% Continuing & Other 16,123,126 16,759,153 636,027 3.9% Fees 20,660,740 21,074,359 413,619 2.0% Total 326,958,382 (1,030,710)-0.3% 325,927,672

Table 3: Tuition and Fee Budget Amounts

### **Investment Income**

Rates of return on short-term investments have dropped significantly in recent months. Low returns are expected through FY 2021 which will reduce investment income by about \$1.4 million.

### **State Performance Funding**

A portion of each public university's state appropriation in Kentucky is based upon a legislatively mandated performance funding model. Funds are allocated based on 11 different metrics; universities are scored relative to each other. For the most recent period, UofL performed better than the average

# **General Fund Details**

FY 2021 Operating Budget



of all other universities on 7 of 11 metrics. As a result, state appropriations to UofL in FY 2021 will increase by \$423,000.

# Housing

Housing revenues increase by about \$1 million in FY 2021 due to planned rate increases and lower vacancy rates as well as the recognition of revenues for managing affiliating housing properties. The following tables list the proposed housing rates for the next academic year.



### HRL - Housing Proposed Semester Rates for FY21

		TR	ADITIO	NAL HALLS			
		M	iller, Thr	elkeld, Unitas			
Room Type	PerSe	emester FY20	PerSe	mester FY21	Rate (	Change Amt	Rate Change %
Double	\$	2,635	\$	2,690	\$ 55		2.09%
Triple (Unitas							
Only)	\$	1,995	\$	2,035	\$	40	2.01%
		1	LOUISV	ILLE HALL			
		Acader	nic Year I	icense Agreem	ent		
Room Type	_	emester FY20	PerSe	mester FY21		Change Amt	Rate Change %
Double	\$	2,735	\$	2,800	\$	65	2.389
Three Bedroom							
Suite	\$	3,040	\$	3,160	\$	120	3.95%
Two Bedroom							
Suite	\$	3,140	\$	3,265	\$	125	3.98%
Deluxe Double	\$	3,280	\$	3,410	\$	130	3.96%
Single	\$	3,445	\$	3,580	\$	135	3.92%
				NARDI HALL Jicense Agreem			
Room Type	Per Se	emester FY20	PerSe	mester FY21	Rate (	Change Amt	Rate Change %
2 Bed, 2 Bath	\$	4,965	\$	5,165	\$	200	4.03%
1 Bed, 1 Bath *	\$	4,965	\$	6,000	\$	1,035	20.85%
* Only two beds				VER APARTI			
Room Type	Per Se	emester FY20	PerSe	mester FY21	Rate 0	Change Amt	Rate Change %
Standard Studio	1.						
Double	\$	2,885	\$	2,945	\$	60	2.089
Large Studio						00,2000	
Double	\$	3,040	\$	3,100	\$	60	1.979
2 Room Double	\$	3,040	\$	3,100	\$	60	1.979
	1 4						

\$

\$

1 Room Double

2 Room Single

3,240 \$

3,495 \$

3,300 \$

3,565 \$

60

70

1.85%

2.00%



# University of Louisville FOUNDATION Housing Proposed Semester Rates for FY21

COMMUNITY PARK  Academic Year License Agreement									
Room Type Per Semester FY20 Per Semester FY21 Rate Change Amt Rate Change									
Double	\$	3,265	\$	3,395	\$	130	3.98%		
Deluxe Double	\$	3,920	\$	4,075	\$	155	3.95%		
Deluxe Single	\$	5,165	\$	5,370	\$	205	3.97%		

### **KURZ HALL**

Academic Year License Agreement

	*							
Room Type	Per Se	Per Semester FY20		Per Semester FY21		Change Amt	Rate Change %	
Double	\$	3,265	\$	3,395	\$	130	3.98%	
Deluxe Double	\$	3,920	\$	4,075	\$	155	3.95%	
Deluxe Single	\$	5,165	\$	5,370	\$	205	3.97%	
Single	\$	4,560	\$	4,740	\$	180	3.95%	

### **BETTIE JOHNSON HALL**

Academic Year License Agreement

Room Type	Per Se	Per Semester FY20		Per Semester FY21		hange Amt	Rate Change %	
4 Bed, 2 Bath	\$	3,645	\$	3,720	\$	75	2.06%	
2 Bed, 1 Bath	\$	3,750	\$	3,825	\$	75	2.00%	
2 Bed, 2 Bath	\$	3,985	\$	4,185	\$	200	5.02%	
3 Bed, 2 Bath	\$	3,950	\$	4,030	\$	80	2.03%	
1 Bed, 1 Bath	\$	4,560	\$	4,790	\$	230	5.04%	
Deluxe 1 Bed, 1								
Bath	\$	5,270	\$	5,535	\$	265	5.03%	

### **MEDICAL-DENTAL APARTMENTS** Academic Year & Summer License Per 4 Month Semester & Per Apartment Room Type FY20 FY21 Rate Change Amt Rate Change % Standard Studio \$ 3,240 \$ 3,240 \$ 0.00% \$ Large Studio 3,240 \$ 3,240 \$ 0.00% 1 Bedroom \$ 3,750 \$ 3,750 \$ 0.00%



# Expenditures

The FY 2021 budget includes the following notable expenditure changes.

Expense Items	Amount
College/department allocations	5,700,000
Annualized COLA increases	2,640,332
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system	2,500,000
Health insurance cost increase	2,500,000
Utilities	2,051,701
Institutional financial aid	1,820,000
Housing (offsetting revenue increase)	1,020,368
Various unit operating (offsetting revenue increases)	3,000,000
Total	\$21,232,401



# Summary of University of Louisville FY 2021 Budget

- 1. \$1.2 billion operating budget
  - a. Funds University activities at Belknap, Health Sciences, and ShelbyHurst campuses
  - Balanced and flexible to help meet upcoming challenges; includes \$17.5 million in unit contingency accounts
  - c. Designed to maintain financial stability and meet mission
  - d. Restructures on-line tuition to allow greater student affordability and flexibility

### Notable FY 2021 Budget Aspects (under current conditions):

- 2. Continues the 2% raise into FY21 (annualized funding of 2% cost-of-living increase awarded on January 1, 2020)
- 3. No pay reductions
- 4. No increase in employee's monthly health insurance premiums
- 5. No parking fee increases
- 6. Maintains policy on 100% tuition benefit for eligible employees and their dependents who take classes at UofL
- 7. University contribution to retirement reinstated on August 1st (temporarily modified from 7.5% to 2.5% of salary; university will continue to match up to 2.5% of employee contribution beyond 8/1)
- 8. No general university-wide furloughs.

### SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY UNIT

The following tables summarize each academic and support unit's general fund expenditures. Actual expenses for FY 2018 and FY 2019 are presented first followed by each unit's budget for FY 2020 and FY 2021. Two elements affect every unit's budget.

- The FY 2020 budget included a 2% cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) for eligible faculty, staff, and administrators beginning on January 1, 2020. The FY 2021 budget includes the full-year cost of the COLA increase. Every unit's salary and wage expenses increase in FY 2021 because of that change.
- 2. The employer-funded share of health insurance premiums increases in FY 2021 by 7.3 percent from FY 2020. That represents an approximate 2.9 percent increase in every unit's fringe benefit costs and is consistently evident in every unit's budget.



### **OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT**

Table 4: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds						
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year ove	er Year		
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change		
Salaries and wages	4,393,694	4,266,749	5,770,596	5,990,748	220,152	3.8%		
Fringe benefits	1,018,544	1,034,696	1,366,164	1,555,588	189,424	13.9%		
Financial aid	70,825	66,368	73,500	73,500	-	0.0%		
Operating	2,492,453	2,471,613	1,517,332	1,452,497	(64,835)	-4.3%		
Contingency	-	-	74,126	395,690	321,564	433.8%		
Total Expenses	7,975,516	7,839,426	8,801,718	9,468,023	666,305	7.6%		

- Salary and fringe benefit increases are primarily due to the transfer of existing legal staff from Health Sciences to the General Counsel's office (a shift of existing expense, not a new expense).
- Shift of existing positions from Human Resources of about \$275,000 (existing university expenses; not new expenses).



# **ATHLETICS**

Table 5: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds							
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year			
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change		
Salaries and wages	36,160	-	-	-	-			
Fringe benefits	7,614	-	-	-	-			
Financial aid	50,700	50,700	50,700	50,700	-	0.09		
Operating	2,152,967	2,092,852	2,092,819	2,092,819	-	0.09		
Contingency	-	-	-	-	-			
al Expenses	2,247,441	2,143,552	2,143,519	2,143,519	-	0.0%		

• Funding is used to support gender equity, retention, and cheerleader scholarships.



# **VICE PRESIDENT FOR FINANCE**

Table 6: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds							
	Actual	Actual Actual Budget Budget							
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change			
Salaries and wages	2,569,748	2,730,176	3,590,522	3,683,475	92,953	2.6%			
Fringe benefits	874,707	882,182	1,094,845	1,181,234	86,389	7.9%			
Financial aid	-	-	-	-	-				
Operating	1,179,015	307,379	340,667	297,635	(43,032)	-12.6%			
Contingency	-	-	39,709	216,667	176,958	445.6%			
Total Expenses	4,623,470	3,919,737	5,065,743	5,379,011	313,268	6.2%			

- Includes shift of one FTE support position from Health Sciences (EVPHA office) to VP for Finance office (a shift of existing university expense, not a new expense).
- Increase also includes \$64,000 in full-year cost-of-living adjustments plus increased fringe benefit costs for FY 2021.



# **HUMAN RESOURCES**

Table 7: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds							
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year				
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change			
Salaries and wages	1,139,780	1,345,500	1,706,873	1,811,422	104,549	6.1%			
Fringe benefits	332,821	383,904	505,442	575,382	69,940	13.8%			
Financial aid	-	-	-	-	-				
Operating	237,259	254,101	154,364	186,680	32,316	20.9%			
Contingency	-	-	19,560	105,163	85,603	437.6%			
Total Expenses	1,709,860	1,983,505	2,386,239	2,678,647	292,408	12.3%			

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• Salary and fringe benefit increases related to transition of three employees from other funding sources (a shift of existing expense, not a new expense).



### **CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER**

Table 8: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds							
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year ove	er Year			
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change			
Salaries and wages	28,754,500	28,515,511	23,741,200	24,489,803	748,603	3.2%			
Fringe benefits	10,386,723	10,088,109	8,307,856	9,274,524	966,668	11.6%			
Financial aid	-	-	-	-	-				
Operating	5,773,425	10,129,871	6,579,845	6,464,112	(115,733)	-1.8%			
Contingency	-	-	803,864	1,693,676	889,812	110.7%			
otal Expenses	44.914.648	48.733.491	39.432.765	41.922.115	2.489.350	6.3%			

- Salary and fringe benefit increases include transition of approximately \$850,000 in business support personnel from the Provost's office to the COO's department (a shift of existing expense, not a new expense).
- Parking expenses increase by approximately \$300,000 primarily for deferred maintenance; funded from anticipated revenue increases in hourly parking and downtown parking garage.



# **AUDIT SERVICES**

Table 9: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds						
	Actual	Actual Actual Budget Budget				r Year		
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change		
Salaries and wages	807,142	1,015,872	1,295,079	1,258,547	(36,532)	-2.8%		
Fringe benefits	233,130	274,397	349,373	353,578	4,205	1.2%		
Finan dal aid	-	-	-	-	-			
Operating	85,405	79,658	127,288	127,018	(270)	-0.2%		
Contingency	-	-	11,623	72,925	61,302	527.4%		
Total Expenses	1,125,678	1,369,928	1,783,363	1,812,068	28,705	1.6%		



# **OFFICE OF THE PROVOST**

Table 10: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds						
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year		
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change	
Salaries and wages	18,709,938	20,882,307	28,465,251	28,091,379	(373,872)	-1.3%	
Fringe benefits	5,344,291	5,869,790	8,044,415	8,360,386	315,971	3.9%	
Financial aid	48,372,006	52,834,116	54,614,430	56,414,915	1,800,485	3.3%	
Operating	7,996,139	9,705,868	14,123,780	12,159,283	(1,964,497)	-13.9%	
Contingency	-	-	477,589	2,045,943	1,568,354	328.4%	
Total Expenses	80,422,374	89,292,081	105,725,465	107,071,906	1,346,441	1.3%	

- Salary and fringe benefit decreases include transition of approximately \$850,000 in business support personnel from the Provost's office to the COO's department.
- Institutional financial aid expenses increase by \$1.8 million.



# **EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT FOR RESEARCH**

Table 11: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds							
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year				
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change			
Salaries and wages	5,432,900	5,322,678	6,388,417	6,576,333	187,916	2.9%			
Fringe benefits	1,761,179	1,681,238	1,905,960	2,007,621	101,661	5.3%			
Financial aid	58,616	11,357	40,531	40,531	-	0.0%			
Operating	3,006,296	3,029,810	2,478,093	2,151,263	(326,830)	-13.2%			
Contingency	-	-	121,372	461,561	340,189	280.3%			
Total Expenses	10,258,991	10,045,082	10,934,373	11,237,309	302,936	2.8%			



### **VICE PRESIDENT FOR STUDENT AFFAIRS**

Table 12: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds						
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year		
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change	
Salaries and wages	5,249,075	5,525,365	5,568,157	6,591,205	1,023,048	18.4%	
Fringe benefits	1,545,034	1,618,413	1,745,001	1,906,073	161,072	9.2%	
Financial aid	935,187	916,055	662,600	806,926	144,326	21.8%	
Operating	5,756,177	6,205,866	6,170,726	6,810,083	639,357	10.4%	
Contingency	-	-	150,000	753,765	603,765	402.5%	
Total Expenses	13,485,473	14,265,700	14,296,484	16,868,052	2,571,568	18.0%	

- About \$1 million of the increase due to cost related to managing affiliated and master lease housing properties that are reimbursed in full by third parties.
- Market-based housing rate increases and occupancy also support an increase in the expenditure budget.
- Mandatory student service fee increased in FY 2020 of approximately \$400K is budgeted in FY 2021.



# VICE PRESIDENT FOR UNIVERSITY ADVANCEMENT

Table 13: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds							
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year			
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change		
Salaries and wages	-	696,198	760,715	756,096	(4,619)	-0.6%		
Fringe benefits	-	161,133	138,318	215,394	77,076	55.7%		
Financial aid	-	-	-	-	-			
Operating	-	34,000	-	-	-			
Contingency	-	-	22,582	39,795	17,213	76.2%		
Total Expenses	-	891,330	921,615	1,011,285	89,670	9.7%		



# VICE PRESIDENT FOR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Table 14: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds								
	Actual	Actual Actual Budget Budget Year over Year							
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change			
Salaries and wages	575,520	537,732	591,229	567,634	(23,595)	-4.0%			
Fringe benefits	173,987	161,194	176,357	178,024	1,667	0.9%			
Financial aid	-	-	-	-	-				
Operating	42,436	34,665	32,140	28,171	(3,969)	-12.3%			
Contingency	-	-	7,086	40,728	33,642	474.8%			
Total Expenses	791,943	733,590	806,812	814,557	7,745	1.0%			

• Salary decreased due to moving a portion of vacant position funding into contingency.



# **UNIVERSITY LIBRARIES**

Table 15: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds							
	Actual	Year ove	er Year					
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change		
Salaries and wages	4,846,742	4,878,879	5,217,089	5,242,412	25,323	0.5%		
Fringe benefits	1,696,519	1,721,195	1,780,149	1,861,914	81,765	4.6%		
Financial aid	-	-	-	-	-			
Operating	10,121,958	10,229,965	9,930,801	9,252,767	(678,034)	-6.8%		
Contingency	-	-	153,009	768,610	615,601	402.3%		
Total Expenses	16,665,218	16,830,039	17,081,048	17,125,703	44,655	0.3%		

• Reallocated operating expenses to contingency, which included a portion of subscription expenses.



# **COLLEGE OF ART AND SCIENCES**

Table 16: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds							
	Actual	Actual Actual Budget Budget Year over Year							
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change			
Salaries and wages	46,815,782	45,472,237	45,912,552	45,710,616	(201,936)	-0.4%			
Fringe benefits	12,975,527	12,660,328	12,824,125	13,455,125	631,000	4.9%			
Financial aid	1,030,588	1,068,089	891,204	990,776	99,572	11.2%			
Operating	5,691,344	6,591,804	5,148,343	4,249,516	(898,827)	-17.5%			
Contingency	-	-	569,972	2,767,791	2,197,819	385.6%			
Total Expenses	66,513,240	65,792,458	65,346,196	67,173,824	1,827,628	2.8%			

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• Reallocated vacant positions and operating expenses to contingency program.



# **JB SPEED SCHOOL OF ENGINEERING**

Table 17: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds							
	Actual	Actual Actual Budget Budget Year o							
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change			
Salaries and wages	18,653,271	18,940,561	20,704,632	20,191,352	(513,280)	-2.5%			
Fringe benefits	4,799,653	4,946,810	5,434,597	5,457,962	23,365	0.4%			
Financial aid	332,113	313,065	220,162	221,997	1,835	0.8%			
Operating	2,679,056	2,835,928	1,463,304	1,915,638	452,334	30.9%			
Contingency	-	-	230,058	1,204,660	974,602	423.6%			
Total Expenses	26,464,094	27,036,364	28,052,753	28,991,609	938,856	3.3%			

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• Increase primarily due to fulfilling Dean's start-up package.



### **COLLEGE OF BUSINESS**

Table 18: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds							
	Actual	Actual Actual Budget Budget Yo							
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change			
Salaries and wages	14,570,967	15,141,118	17,455,218	18,301,838	846,620	4.9%			
Fringe benefits	3,414,767	3,480,174	3,902,363	4,069,745	167,382	4.3%			
Financial aid	415,349	401,231	784,000	512,000	(272,000)	-34.7%			
Operating	2,283,937	2,906,485	5,248,653	4,443,168	(805,485)	-15.3%			
Contingency	-	-	250,000	1,234,715	984,715	393.9%			
Total Expenses	20,685,020	21,929,008	27,640,234	28,561,466	921,232	3.3%			

- Salary and fringe benefit increases are due to faculty hires for new Bachelor of Arts in Business and Masters of Science in Business Analytics degrees. Unit anticipates new revenue to offset the expense increases.
- Operating expense increase includes marketing efforts. Unit anticipates new revenue to offset the expense increase.



### COLLEGE OF EDUCATION AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT

Table 19: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds						
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year		
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change	
Salaries and wages	14,124,230	14,170,782	15,338,118	14,324,281	(1,013,837)	-6.6%	
Fringe benefits	4,115,090	4,046,706	4,410,842	4,343,889	(66,953)	-1.5%	
Financial aid	309,590	344,841	320,850	1,002,532	681,682	212.5%	
Operating	1,693,197	1,399,788	1,272,392	112,852	(1,159,540)	-91.1%	
Contingency	-	-	187,205	1,002,532	815,327	435.5%	
Total Expenses	20.242.107	19.962.117	21.529.407	20.786.086	(743.321)	-3.5%	

- Salary and fringe benefit expenses decrease due to unit reallocating vacant positions to contingency program and not filling positions within the dean's office.
- Expected decrease in credit hours in Teaching & Learning programs also reflected in lower expense budgets. The College of Education is trying to compensate by increasing recruitment and seeking potential offsets in other departments.



# KENT SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK

Table 20: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds							
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year			
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change		
Salaries and wages	4,648,714	5,044,734	5,489,321	5,627,999	138,678	2.5%		
Fringe benefits	1,173,960	1,236,831	1,354,879	1,476,306	121,427	9.0%		
Financial aid	215,440	215,429	-	212,000	212,000			
Operating	485,812	413,777	663,581	389,486	(274,095)	-41.3%		
Contingency	-	-	65,687	346,119	280,432	426.9%		
Total Expenses	6,523,926	6,910,771	7,573,468	8,051,910	478,442	6.3%		

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• Expense budget increase is tied to an increase in tuition revenues.



# Brandeis School of Law

Table 21: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds								
	Actual	Actual Actual Budget Budget Year over Year								
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change				
Salaries and wages	5,313,568	5,398,911	5,840,012	5,707,625	(132,387)	-2.3%				
Fringe benefits	1,445,467	1,476,907	1,535,443	1,593,271	57,828	3.8%				
Financial aid	1,288,217	2,067,779	2,271,400	2,271,400	-	0.0%				
Operating	1,795,104	1,924,928	1,639,773	1,602,732	(37,041)	-2.3%				
Contingency	-	-	98,497	471,611	373,114	378.8%				
Total Expenses	9,842,356	10,868,525	11,385,125	11,646,639	261,514	2.3%				

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• FY 2021 budget includes an additional \$600,000 in university-funded support due to projected 20 student decline in first-year law class.



### SCHOOL OF MUSIC

Table 22: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds								
	Actual	Actual Actual Budget Budget Year over Yea								
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change				
Salaries and wages	4,841,831	4,892,554	5,202,665	5,027,544	(175,121)	-3.4%				
Fringe benefits	1,314,933	1,412,542	1,345,882	1,512,133	166,251	12.4%				
Financial aid	913,405	770,217	853,896	867,009	13,113	1.5%				
Operating	617,309	432,593	405,793	305,816	(99,977)	-24.6%				
Contingency	-	-	65,904	384,863	318,959	484.0%				
Total Expenses	7,687,478	7,507,905	7,874,140	8,097,365	223,225	2.8%				

- The unit strategically held three vacant positions and moved the funds to their contingency account which resulted in lower budgeted salaries.
- Fringe benefit increase is due to health insurance premium increase and a correction to graduate student fringe benefit amounts.



# **EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT FOR HEALTH AFFAIRS**

Table 23: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds							
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year			
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change		
Salaries and wages	2,837,961	2,909,273	2,691,275	3,434,773	743,498	27.6%		
Fringe benefits	882,478	960,885	875,240	971,425	96,185	11.0%		
Financial aid	78,791	25,638	71,136	69,810	(1,326)	-1.9%		
Operating	8,578,743	8,694,959	7,808,543	7,719,466	(89,077)	-1.1%		
Contingency	-	-	113,789	620,268	506,479	445.1%		
Total Expenses	12,377,971	12,590,755	11,559,983	12,815,742	1,255,759	10.9%		

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• As part of Pediatrics' transition, salary and fringe benefit budget amounts increased in EVPHA as internal funding shifted from clinical pass-through to the general fund. A similar, but opposite, exchange occurs within the School of Nursing.



# **SCHOOL OF DENTISTRY**

Table 24: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds					
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year	
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change
Salaries and wages	17,999,093	15,447,140	16,724,793	16,707,830	(16,963)	-0.1%
Fringe benefits	5,075,653	4,576,769	4,829,689	4,959,161	129,472	2.7%
Financial aid	295,600	291,839	276,237	265,371	(10,866)	-3.9%
Operating	4,310,377	1,814,293	2,503,457	2,620,955	117,498	4.7%
Contingency	-	-	236,655	1,323,296	1,086,641	459.2%
Total Expenses	27,680,723	22,130,040	24,570,831	25,876,613	1,305,782	5.3%

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• Increases tied to growth in tuition revenue and a continued plan to increase non-resident enrollment by 10 students per year.



# SCHOOL OF MEDICINE

Table 25: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

		General Funds					
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Year over Year			
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change	
Salaries and wages	30,440,605	28,771,322	29,151,927	28,466,198	(685,729)	-2.4%	
Fringe benefits	7,507,170	7,043,712	7,132,096	7,483,655	351,559	4.9%	
Financial aid	739,016	704,777	613,046	608,046	(5,000)	-0.8%	
Operating	3,508,058	2,189,565	2,810,368	3,273,440	463,072	16.5%	
Contingency	-	-	202,558	1,829,159	1,626,601	803.0%	
Total Expenses	42,194,849	38,709,376	39,909,995	41,660,498	1,750,503	4.4%	

- Overall Increases tied to growth in tuition revenue
- Decrease in salary associated with unit moving funding to contingency program



# SCHOOL OF NURSING

Table 26: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds					
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year	
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change
Salaries and wages	5,365,225	5,352,354	5,316,281	4,406,867	(909,414)	-17.1%
Fringe benefits	1,443,144	1,460,563	1,469,808	1,155,347	(314,461)	-21.4%
Financial aid	10,000	(500)	10,000	-	(10,000)	-100.0%
Operating	316,042	350,512	258,621	356,464	97,843	37.8%
Contingency	-	-	57,622	980,534	922,912	1601.7%
Total Expenses	7,134,411	7,162,929	7,112,332	6,899,212	(213,120)	-3.0%

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• As part of Pediatrics' transition, salary and fringe benefit budget amounts decrease in Nursing as funding sources shift from general fund to non-general funds. A similar, but opposite, funding source exchange occurs within the EVPHA's office.



# SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND INFORMATION SCIENCES

Table 27: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds					
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year	
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change
Salaries and wages	3,552,804	2,705,216	3,275,211	3,116,741	(158,470)	-4.8%
Fringe benefits	931,744	665,802	873,651	840,669	(32,982)	-3.8%
Financial aid	387,696	44,244	-	30,249	30,249	
Operating	312,992	220,087	177,619	189,799	12,180	6.9%
Contingency	-	-	35,029	207,411	172,382	492.1%
Total Expenses	5,185,236	3,635,351	4,361,510	4,384,869	23,359	0.5%

# Notable general fund budget changes:

• Reduction in salaries and fringe benefits amounts reflects reallocation to non-general funds.



# University-wide (Utilities, Debt Service, Insurances)

Table 28: FY 2021 General Funds Summary

	General Funds						
	Actual	Actual	Budget	Budget	Year over Year		
	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020	FY 2021	\$ Change	% Change	
Salaries and wages	284,866	487,704	3,621,930	500,468	(3,121,462)	-86.29	
Fringe benefits	528,415	329,745	363,638	38,292	(325,346)	-89.5%	
Financial aid	2,199,408	358,037	-	-	-		
Operating	49,029,663	53,059,967	45,044,644	53,844,790	8,800,146	19.59	
Contingency	-	-	-	-	-		
Total Expenses	52,042,352	54,235,452	49,030,212	54,383,550	5,353,338	10.9%	

- \$2.5 million for Enterprise Resource Planning platform; half-year expense of a multi-year plan
- Approximately \$2 million increase in utility expenses due to anticipated rate and usage increases
- Approximately \$600,000 increase in university property insurance premiums

Letter from Mark Watkins, via the Operations Service Account

The University of Louisville looks forward to continuing our phased return to campus and welcoming back our faculty, staff and students this summer and fall. Today, we want to share how we plan to maximize safety on campus and our strategy regarding universal campus signage to ensure all university members stay safe, stay healthy and stop the spread of COVID-19.

Based on CDC guidance, the following seven health and safety protocols have been established and are required for all university members:

- 1. **Practice physical distancing** and stay six feet apart.
- 2. Wear a mask or face covering in common areas and avoid touching your face.
- 3. **Cover your cough or sneeze** with your elbow or a tissue, then throw that tissue in the trash.
- 4. **Disinfect used surfaces** and frequently touched objects.
- 5. Wash your hands often with soap and water for at least 20 seconds.
- 6. **Use an alcohol-based hand sanitizer** with at least 60% alcohol if soap and water aren't readily available.
- 7. Stay home if you are feeling sick and avoid contact with people who are sick.

Based on the work of our signage subcommittee, we have developed universal signage that illustrates guidance for when to especially follow these protocols. Distribution of this signage will happen in two phases.

### Phase 1 Signage:

The first phase is geared towards providing this universal signage for all main entry/exit doors of buildings, restrooms, student lines, elevators, service centers and high traffic areas at no cost to the departments. Window decals outlining the key message will be affixed on all building main doors and restroom mirrors as a reminder. Our subcommittee led by Chief Gary Lewis is working on the distribution of these signs and plans to have this done within the next two weeks.

### Phase 2 Signage:

Phase two is focused on resources for face coverings and putting up signage in classrooms to remind people to maintain physical distance and wear a mask or face covering. We have nearly 370 unique classrooms across all three campuses, which makes creating barriers and/or removal of seating extremely challenging. It is important to note, that in some cases Deans and Vice Presidents may have funding within their budget to develop seating signage that can indicate where exactly students and employees should sit to maintain physical distance, and those leaders are encouraged to do so. As background, the signage subcommittee determined that attempts to create a consistent application for specific seating for both short and long-term class sessions (e.g., day vs. evening classes) could not be achieved with one universal application.

### **Additional Health and Safety Guidelines:**

In addition to the general, seven universal health and safety protocols, there are multiple supporting guidelines all university members should be aware of:

- Meetings and group gatherings should be virtual when possible or when the meeting venue is not large enough for the group to observe physical distancing of six feet.
  - o If meetings or group gatherings need to occur in person, it is a required that all participants wear a mask or face covering if physical distancing isn't possible.
  - Main meeting rooms should be set up to promote physical distancing. It will be
    the responsibility of the meeting organizer to ensure that attendees are following
    safety procedures, such as wearing a mask/face covering and physical distancing.
- We encourage supervisors and Building Emergency Coordinators to identify locations outside of the main common areas for placing additional universal signage of the health and safety protocols, including other high traffic common areas, office spaces, kitchenettes, conference rooms, etc.
  - o Printable posters will be available electronically for departments and Building Emergency Coordinators to print and post in their own building common areas and office areas at: https://printing.louisville.edu/category/Covid19
- Digital signage managers will be sent electronic signage in coming weeks to digitally display the seven protocols and Campus Health contact information.
- We will provide hand sanitizer in all buildings, which include wall mounts in common areas and freestanding bottles at department counters.
  - Classrooms will be equipped with a sanitizing station consisting of a shelf that will have two bottles of disinfectant spray, paper towels and a trash can. Physical Plant Custodians will maintain all soap dispensers and hand sanitizer in these areas.
- Staff, faculty and students are expected to help wipe down frequently used surfaces, machines, doorknobs, and handles in their areas, in an effort to keep spaces as sanitized as possible.
  - A training video to instruct on the proper way to wipe down surfaces is being created by our Department of Environmental Health and Safety (DEHS) team to assist in our efforts. Once completed, we will share this with the campus community.

### What to do if you become sick

Please remember that if someone ever shows **any COVID-19 symptoms** or has been in close contact with anyone recently diagnosed, the employee should do the following:

- 1) Stay at home.
- 2) Notify his/her supervisor immediately.
- 3) Contact Campus Health Services for further direction: (502) 852-6446 or visit <u>Campus Health.</u>

The individual's medical provider will advise how to proceed once test results are complete. Those that can work from home will have that option during quarantine with department approval. A return to work note from your medical provider will be required before returning to work on Campus. Human Resources will provide guidance on sick leave and stay at home policies for departments.

In sum, we truly look forward to welcoming back our university community on campus as we get closer to the fall and we want to make sure we facilitate that welcome as safely as possible. We thank managers, supervisors and faculty in advance for the responsibility they will take on to ensure adherence to the protocols and guidelines. It will take the cooperation of all of us together to stay safe, stay healthy and stop the spread of COVID-19.